
            

 

Scrutiny - Men's Health: Getting to the heart of the 
matter 

 
WEDNESDAY, 16TH NOVEMBER, 2011 at 18:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Winskill (Chair), Waters, Hare and Rice 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item which they appear.  New items will be 
dealt with at item 10 below). 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is being considered must disclose to that meeting the existence 
and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent. 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member’s judgement of the public interest and i9if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of the Code 
of Conduct and/or it is related to the determining of any approval, consent, license, 
permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described in 
paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

4. CENTRE FOR PUBLIC SCRUTINY ENGAGEMENT WHEEL  (PAGES 1 - 2)  
 



 

2 

 To take the panel through the Scrutiny Engagement wheel. 
 
Laura Murphy, CfPS Adviser. 
 

5. GP PERSPECTIVE    
 
 To hear from Dr Michelle Northrop on a GP perspective of engaging with men to 

improve their health. 
 

6. PUBLIC HEALTH  (PAGES 3 - 52)  
 
 Deferred from last meeting. 

 
To hear from Public Health a strategic overview of the Life Expectancy gap in 
Haringey. 
 

7. LOCAL INVOLVEMENT NETWORK    
 
 To receive input from the Local Involvement Network representatives. 

 
8. MINUTES  (PAGES 53 - 58)  
 
 To approve the minutes of the last meeting. 

 
9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
10. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items submitted under Item 2 above. 

 
 
 
David McNulty 
Head of Local Democracy  
and Member Services  
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Melanie Ponomarenko 
Senior Policy Officer 
Level 7 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 0208 489 2933 
Email: 
Melanie.Ponomarenko@Haringey.gov.uk  
 
Tuesday, 08 November 2011 

 
 
 
 



EMPLOYMENT

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
/N

E
IG

H
B

O
U

R
H

O
O
D

CULTURE/LEISURE
BUILT ENVIRONMENT

IN
CLU

D
IN

G

N
A
T
U

R
A

L
E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

HEALTH

HOUSING/PLANNIN
G

PRIORITY

THEME

(what is the 

issue?)

Health Inequalities Scrutiny Programme

Scrutiny engagement wheel

Key

inner circle - individual

mid circle - community + vs

outer circle - org/agency

Agenda Item 4Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

BRIEFING PAPER FOR CROSS PARTY WORKING GROUP 
 
TACKLING THE LIFE EXPECTANCY GAP 
 
PHPHFXW Page 1 08/11/2011 
 
1.Introduction 
The Cross Party Working Group (CPWG) on reducing Health Inequalities in Haringey 
has three working priorities.  The priorities are consistent with the Marmot Review1, 
London Health Inequalities Strategy, priorities identified by the National Support Team 
on Health Inequalities (including feedback on their visit to Haringey in 2009) and The 
Thematic Paper for CEMB “Towards a Health Inequalities Strategy for Haringey”2.  
Therefore the work of this group builds on work underway to reduce Health Inequalities.  
This paper is for the third meeting of the CPWG that will focus on the 2nd priority: 
Tackling the Life Expectancy gap:  

• Prevention: smoking, physical activity, alcohol, obesity and nutrition 

• Early Intervention (adults over 40): cardiovascular disease, cancer, diabetes.   
 
The aim of this report is to:  

• Give the CPWG an understanding of the key impacts on the life expectancy, what 
we are currently doing to address them and what more we could do, based on best 
practice 

• Make recommendations for priority actions to take this work forward, particularly 
focusing on the Council’s contribution.   
The CPWG is asked to consider and endorse these recommendations, where 
appropriate.  
The paper will focus more on Prevention than on Early Intervention as there is greater 
potential contribution for the Council in this area.  
 
 
2.Life Expectancy in Haringey 
Life expectancy at birth iin Haringey has increased over recent years as it has nationally 
(Figure 1).  However whilst life expectancy for Haringey males is significantly worse 
than the England average  (76.6 and 78.3 respectively in 2005-9), life expectancy in 
females in Haringey is significantly higher than in England (83.7 and 82.3 respectively in 
2005-9)ii. Disability-free life expectancy is similar to the England average for both males 
and females.  The gap between life expectancy in males in England and Haringey may 
be widening. There are stark differences in life expectancy in males between the East 
and West of Haringey (Figure 2 below): nine years difference between the highest in 
Fortis Green (80.9) and the lowest in Tottenham Green (71.68) (2005-8).   Further 
analysis shows that the inequality in male life expectancy across the borough is actually 
better than the England average; for females it is similar to the England average.  
However, the gap in life expectancy across Haringey, mirrors the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation across the borough; this is unacceptable.  Certain “vulnerable’” groups in 
society e.g. people with mental health problems or learning disabilities also have a 
lower life expectancy than the general population. For example a person with 

                                                 
i
 Life expectancy at birth is the number of years of life from birth that can be expected on average in a give 

population 
ii
 Marmot Indicators (London Health Observatory) 

Agenda Item 6Page 3



 2 

schizophrenia lives on average 10 years less than some one without a mental health 
problem, mainly due to physical health problems. 3 
 
 

Key messages:  

• Life expectancy is increasing in Haringey and nationally 

• There are nine years gap in male life expectancy between Tottenham Green in the 
East and  Fortis Green in the West 

• Life expectancy is significantly lower in certain “vulnerable” groups 

 
Figure 1: Trends in life expectancy  (1991-2008) 
   

 

 
 
 
Source: London Health Observatory (LHO) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

England and Wales Male England and Wales Female

London Male London Female

Haringey Male Haringey Female

Page 4



 3 

 
 
 
 
 
Figure 2: Male life expectancy in Haringey by ward (2004-2008) 

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham 

HaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHale

Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland Park
Bounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham 

HaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHale

Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland Park
Bounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green

AlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandra

Crouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch End

Fortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis Green

HighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgate

HornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell Hill

Noel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel Park

St Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann's

Tottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham Green

West GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest Green

White Hart LaneWhite  Hart LaneWhite  Hart LaneWhite  Hart LaneWhite  Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite  Hart Lane

WoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodside

Life Expectancy at Birth

(Years)

78.75 to 80.91

76.87 to 78.75

74.81 to 76.87

74.33 to 74.81

71.68 to 74.33

 
Source: LHO 
 
3.Key drivers for addressing Gaps in Life Expectancy 
 
3.1 What is causing the gap in life expectancy? 
Reducing the gaps in life expectancy between boroughs of lower life expectancy 
(previously called Spearhead areas) and the England average has been a focus of 
national policy.  The contributors to the gap in male life expectancy between Haringey 
and England is shown in Figure 3 below (also called “the scarf”) The greatest 
contributors are circulatory disease (28%) and cancers (25%). Relating to age: 8% is 
due to men aged 40-49 years, 30% of the gap is due to men aged 50-59 years, 35% is 
due to men 60-69 years; in total 73% of the gap in male life expectancy is due to men 
aged 40-69 years.  Figure 4 shows the large differences by ward within Haringey in 
cardiovascular disease (CVD) mortality.  Premature mortality rates (under 75s) for CVD 
and for cancers in Haringey, whilst improving, are worse than in Englandiii.  
Reducing inequalities in cardiovascular and cancer mortality in adults (particularly men 
over 40) will have the greatest impact on reducing inequalities in life expectancy in 
Haringey.  Other contributors to the life expectancy gap are respiratory disease, 
digestive disease, infectious diseases and external causes (including injury,  poisoning 
and suicide) and reducing mortality in the first 28 days of life. Respiratory diseases 
includes Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD), a long term condition closely 
related to smoking. Alcohol related conditions, such as chronic liver disease and 

                                                 
iii
 LHO Haringey Health Profile 2011 www.healthprofiles.info 

Page 5



 4 

cirrhosis, are important contributors to digestive diseases.  External causes, whilst not a 
major contributor to the gap include strong links with deprivation including injury (e.g. 28 
fold difference in death on the road between children in high and low socio-economic 
groups) and suicides.  Excess winter deaths, have an important seasonal contribution to 
cardiovascular, respiratory and infectious diseases.  In conclusion the key contributors 
to the life expectancy gap are CVD (stroke and heart disease) , cancer, alcohol, lung 
disease, and deaths in men over 40 
 
 
Figure 3: Life expectancy gap between Haringey and England. Breakdown by 
cause of death and by age group, males (2006-8).  “the scarf” 
 

28

25

8

8
6

8

12

5

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100% Deaths under 28 days

Other

Infectious and parasitic 

diseases
External causes

Digestive diseases

Respiratory diseases

All cancers

All circulatory diseases

 

30

35

11

7 80+

70-79

60-69

50-59

40-49

30-39

20-29

10-19

01-09

<1

 

Source: LHO 
 
 
Figure 4: Death rates from cardiovascular disease under 75 by ward (2004-2008) 

Page 6



 5 

W est W est W est W est W est W est W est W est W est 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen

StroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroud

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

Tottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham Hale

Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green

W est W est W est W est W est W est W est W est W est 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen

StroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroud

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

Tottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham Hale

Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green

AlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandra

Crouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch End

Fortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis Green

HighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgate

HornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyMusw ell HillMusw ell HillMusw ell HillMusw ell HillMusw ell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMusw ell Hill

Noel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel Park

St Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann's

Tottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham Green

W hite Hart LaneW hite Hart LaneW hite Hart LaneW hite Hart LaneW hite Hart LaneW hite Hart LaneW hite Hart LaneW hite Hart LaneW hite Hart Lane

W oodsideW oodsideW oodsideW oodsideW oodsideW oodsideW oodsideW oodsideW oodside

Under 75 SMR

(England = 100)

142.2 to 161.9

134.8 to 142.2

113.8 to 134.8

101.7 to 113.8

67.7 to 101.7

 
Source: LHO 
 
 
 
 

 
Key contributors to life expectancy gap:  

• stroke, heart disease, cancer, alcohol, lung disease 

• deaths in men over 40 
 

 
3.2 Priorities for Action 
 
It is well established that a number of modifiable behavioural risk factors are linked to 
both increased likelihood of cardiovascular disease and cancers as well as other long 
term conditions (e.g. diabetes). Figure 5, “the caterpillar” demonstrates the proportion of 
deaths attributable to each factor. Addressing inequalities in these factors in the 
population through preventative programmes will lead to reduction the life expectancy 
gap.  This is an important area of policy for the Council to have an impact on health 
inequalities.  
 
The Health inequalities National Support Team (HINST) 4identified evidence based 
actions that would have an effect within a short timescale. This includes early diagnosis 
and management of disease (early intervention) and effective prevention of further 
illness (secondary prevention) in people who have already ill e.g. had a heart attack or 
stroke.  Though much of this is within the realm of the NHS, the Council has a key role 
in supporting secondary prevention and raising awareness about key diseases within 
communities.  
 

Page 7



 6 

Most risk factors and mortality inequalities show a gradient from worse to better health 
across socio-economic groups rather than just good health for the affluent and bad 
health for the poor in society. Marmot emphasises that policy delivery and resources 
should reflect this gradient rather than just focus on the worst off. 
Programmes should be targeted at certain groups with poor health outcomes e.g. 
addressing the physical health needs of people with mental health problems.   
 
Health Inequalities results from social inequalities. The importance of addressing wider 
determinants such as employment, housing and ensuring a healthy living standards is 
also  emphasised, particularly in order to reduce inequalities in the long term1.    
 
Figure 5: Key modifiable behavioural factors contributing to death in Haringey. 
The “caterpillar” 
 

 
Source: Public Health Mortality File 
(Prepared by NHS Islington) 
 
 

 
The key priorities for action to reduce inequalities in life expectancy are:   
 
Prevention: particularly smoking. Also physical activity, alcohol, obesity, diet and 
nutrition. These are risk factors for cardiovascular disease and cancer.  The Council has 
a key role.   
 
Early Intervention:  particularly cardiovascular disease and cancer but also other long-
term conditions such as diabetes and lung disease and prevention of excess winter 

Page 8



 7 

deaths.  Council’s key roles are supporting secondary prevention (lifestyle change in 
those with illness), and awareness raising.  
 
Approaches:  

• delivery across the social gradient 

• target key groups including mental health, learning disabilities 

• address the wider determinants of health 
 

 
 
3. 2 Prevention 
Smoking, physical inactivity, obesity, poor nutrition and alcohol are important risk 
factors5 for Cardiovascular disease and cancers, demonstrate a social gradient across 
socio-economic groups and are commoner in certain Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) 
groups and sub-groups such as people with learning disabilities.  National, regional and 
local policy documents emphasise the importance of reducing inequalities in these risk 
factors in order to reduce inequalities in life expectancy. For example: Next Steps for 
Delivery of the London Health Inequalities Strategy – prioritises prevention, in particular 
a focuses on scaling up physical activity.  The HINST recommends making “Health 
Gain” everyone’s business – this includes providing training in brief interventions (see 
below, physical activity section) and monitoring referrals for all front line staff from 
health, local authority and voluntary sector.  Two policy objectives of the Marmot review 
1 are to tackle ill health prevention and develop healthy sustainable places and 
communities. These were adopted locally in the Haringey the Thematic Paper for CEMB 
2010 “Towards a Health Inequalities Strategy for Haringey”2 and emphasise the 
importance of promoting health lifestyles through changes in the environment, a key 
area for partnership working with the council, rather than individual life style changes 
alone.   
 
3.2.1Smoking 
Smoking, and tobacco consumption is the UK’s greatest cause of preventable illness 
and early death.  It is also the primary reason or the gap in life expectancy between 
socio-economic groups.   There is a strong link between smoking rates and deprivation.   
If men aged 35-69 in social class V had the same smoking rates as those in social class 
I, then half of the inequality in mortality would disappear 6. Certain groups have high 
rates of tobacco use and higher nicotine dependence e.g. lone parents, specific ethnic 
groups e.g. Turkish, Bangladeshi, Irish men and people with mental health problems, 
about half of whom smoke7. National rates of smoking are reducing. 8If this continues it 
should reduce the incidence of CVD and later on Cancer incidence.  The “London 
Boost” (2006) for the Health Survey For England modelled smoking prevalence as 
28.6% males and 24.2% females in Haringey compared to 25.3% for males and 18.8% 
for females in London.  26106 males and 24108 females smoke in Haringey. Figure xx 
shows the large difference in smoking rates across the borough  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure x: Smoking rates in Haringey by super output area 

 
Source: LHO 
 
What should we be doing? 
A wide strategic approach to Tobacco Control is required to impact upon smoking.  
Department of Health recommends that smoking cessation support should be aimed at 
5% of quitters. Other smokers will quit unaided. Wider Tobacco control efforts through a 

Page 10



 9 

range of interventions are vital to prompt and maintain these quits, in part by changing 
social norms.   
 
Best practice to support smoking cessation and Tobacco Control therefore includes:  
 

• Establish a multi-agency strategic approach to Tobacco Control4 

• Brief interventions: this may include opportunistic advice, discussion, negotiation and 
encouragement and referral, where appropriate, to intensive support e.g. through NHS 
Stop smoking services. 9There is very good evidence to support appropriately trained 
provision by GPs, primary care or community staff. It is highly cost effective10 

• Smoking support should be targeted at key groups to reduce smoking related 
inequalities within the short term4 . These include:  
o People with CVD, lung disease, cancer and diabetes 
o Pregnant smokers 
o Smoking within lower socio-economic groups 

• BME groups may be served by accessible mainstream interventions or work with 
local communities to develop targeted services 11 

• Media campaigns with a variety of media can be effective in encouraging and 
support quit attempts. 12 

• Develop social networks: advice and counselling to support smoking cessation; 
community based interventions to support people who wish to stop smoking and 
disseminate messages (evidence of success in some cases); work place programmes 
(particularly focusing on individual support) 13can be effective.  

• These actions should be combined with medium and longer term actions such as 
de-normalising tobacco use through smoke free legislation, tackling illicit tobacco 
control (smuggled, counterfeit under age sales) and enforcement and extension of 
smoke free legislation4.    

• Improve measurement of smoking prevalence to target local services4.  
 
What are we doing? 

• We have a multi-agency Haringey Tobacco Control Alliance, supported by a strategy 
and action plan.   

• Smoke Free Enfield and Haringey (SFEH) provides an evidence based Stop 
Smoking Service for Enfield and Haringey. This was recently (February) 
recommissioned and is being developed and performance managed in accordance with 
a service specification and key performance indicators that highlight: routine and 
manual groups, people with mental health problems, pregnant women,  BME groups, 
media and advertising campaigns and partnership support for Tobacco Control plans.   

• Tobacco control enforcement: there are regular test purchases of under age sales 
but they have a high failure rate, i.e. sales are still made, particularly with smaller 
traders.  There is generally good compliance with smoke free legislation, less so within 
vehicles. Shisha is an emerging problem, officers are supporting proprietors in handling 
this.  Smoking is raised as an issue by other officers during visits where possible.   
 
What more could we do?  
Continue to work with the new SFEH to improve the quality, accessibility and capacity of 
the service to support people from target groups to stop smoking.  Focus on those with 
long term conditions in addition to those from lower socio-economic groups, BME, 
mental health problems and pregnant women.  Also develop stop before the op and opt 

Page 11



 10 

out programmes to encourage smoking cessation in certain settings.  It is important to 
work with partners to actively market this service within target communities.  
 
In the light of recent organisational and resource changes, review the Tobacco Control 
alliance and action plan against best practice guidance to achieve “Excellence in 
Tobacco Control: 10 High Impact Changes” 4 
 
Tobacco Control measures: we should use methods other than prosecution to reduce 
under age sales e.g. educational initiatives with schools, work closer with new SFEH,  
target businesses (including those with vehicles) to encourage Smoke Free policies, 
particularly in areas of high prevalence.  
 

Recommendations 
1. Endorse Tobacco Control as a key strategic priority for the Council and partners as 
2. Re-invigorate the Tobacco Control Alliance, working closely with the new stop 
smoking service and with Enfield Tobacco Control Alliance, focusing on target groups.  
3. Work with partners to fully market and publicise the new stop smoking service and 
raise awareness about smoking within key communities in Haringey.  
4. Continue to work to address illicit tobacco control practices, particularly in the East, 
using a range of approaches in partnership 
5. Target businesses and work within the council to extend Smoke Free policies and 
practices.  

 
Related Documents 
Tobacco Control Strategy and Action Plan (under review) 
Service Specification and Key Performance Indicators for the Stop Smoking Service 
 
 
3.2.2 Physical Activity  
 
Physical inactivity is amongst the ten leading causes of death in developed countries, 
causing 1.9 million deaths worldwide each year14. The risk of premature death amongst 

physically active adults is reduced by 20% -30%, and the risk of developing major 

long-term conditions such as CHD, stroke diabetes and cancers are reduced by up to 

50%15.  The strong evidence for physical activity has led to physical inactivity being 
recognised as a major modifiable risk factor for CHD16.  
 
Physical inactivity is associated with increases in obesity, cardiovascular disease 
(CVD), cancer, hypertension, and in the development of type II diabetes.  Participation 
in regular physical activity can help to prevent and treat over twenty long-term 
conditions or disorders, including stroke, obesity, some cancers, mental health and type 
II diabetes. 
 
New guidance states that recommended levels of physical activity for adults are to aim 
to be active daily.  Over a week, activity should amount to at least 150 minutes of 
moderate intensity physical activity in bouts of 10 minutes or more.  Alternatively, 
comparable benefits can be achieved through 75 minutes of vigorous intensity activity 
spread across the week or combinations of moderate and vigorous activity.  Adults 
should also undertake physical activity to improve muscle strength on at least two days 
a week.  In 2006 one third of adults in England led sedentary lifestyles (i.e. less than 30 

Page 12



 11 

minutes activity per week) and only 40% of men and 28% of women achieving 
recommended levels. In Haringey 21.7% of adults participated in sport and active 
recreation at a moderate intensity equivalent to 30 minutes on 3 or more days a week.  
Activity levels have not changed in recent years.  
 
There are significant inequalities in levels of physical activity in relation to age, gender, 
ethnicity and disability.  For example, in Haringey white adult populations are more 
active than non-white adults, men tend to be more active than women, younger people 
are more active than their older counterparts and activity levels are lower in those who 
have a limiting illness or disability.  The data also indicates that there is a very strong 
correlation between participation and social class. Within Haringey, people in the lower 
socieconomic groups (NS5, 6 7 and 8) are less active than those in the higher 
socioeconomic groups (NS1 and 2), at levels of 18.3% and 26.8% respectively (see 
figure 7) 17 .   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 7: Sports participation by socio-economic group  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

NS1&2 NS5, 6, 7 and 8

Socio - economic Group

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 (
%

)

 
Source: Sport England (2010) 
 
What should we be doing?  
The evidence suggests a range of options including non-facility based programmes, 
exercise referral schemes, moderate intensity physical activity and behavioural or 
psychological interventions.  Key messages from the limited evidence base are181920  

Page 13



 12 

• Use of approaches that include a psychological, behaviour change component lead 
to longer term changes  

• Brief interventions (by health professionals) or others are highly effective 

• Exercise referral schemes are recommended 

• Interventions that promote moderate intensity physical activity, especially walking 
and are non – facility based achieve longer term changes 

• Whilst there is less evidence for walking and cycling schemes – they are 
recommended as a means of incorporating regular physical activity into peoples lives 

• There is little evidence for pedometers  

• Moderate and non-endurance exercise supports changes in older people  
 
Other key recommendations are:  

• Ensure local facilities and options are accessible to the least active target groups 
(BME, lower socio-economic groups, disabled, older people)  

• Scale up voluntary and community sector to deliver physical activity (Mayor’s Health 
Inequalities Strategy delivery plan)  

• Develop an organisation wide policy to encourage and support employees to be 
more physically active, in line with NICE guidance for employers21 e.g. facilitate activity 
to, from and during work.  
 
Proposals to improve the physical environment and thus encourage physical activity 
recommended by NICE include22:  

• Facilitate the use of open spaces and develop walking and cycling routes 

• Planning applications should prioritise the need for people to be physically active 

• Encourage active travel, walking and cycling.  Effective transport interventions 
include:  health promotion campaigns and behaviour change support to promote 
walking and cycling, backed by physical measures e.g. traffic calming and walking and 
cycle routes 23.  “Fairness” for certain vulnerable groups in a car dependent society 
requires a shift to more sustainable and space efficient modes of transport and giving 
priority to pedestrians, cyclists and public transport usersiv24.  
 
 
What are we doing?  
Community Sport and Physical Activity Network (CSPAN), facilitates the effective 
strategic coordination of planning and provision for Haringey. It aims to ensure people of 
all ages and abilities have the opportunity to participate in high quality sport and 
physical activity and therefore reduce inequalities in access and participation.  
 
Haringey currently has a range of sport, leisure and physical activity opportunities 
available within the borough:  

• Five council owned facilities, provide a range of facility based physical activity 
options. Externalisation of management of three of these is underway; this should result 
in release of resources to commission other services.  

• A number of sports development posts and sports and physical activity programmes 
are provided across the borough.  Funding for a number of these programmes are time 
limited.   

                                                 
iv
 The Council established an independent Sustainable Transport Commission to to examine some of the most 

pressing transport issues in Haringey. The Commission’s recommendations include giving priority to pedestrians, 

cyclists and public transport users over moving and parked vehicular traffic. 

Page 14



 13 

• “Active for Life” exercise (GP) Referral Scheme: focuses on people with Long Term 
Conditions who are amongst the least active (such as diabetes, hypertension) in the 
East of the borough, offering them a range of physical activity options.  

• Health Trainers scheme (see below) gives one to one advice and support and brief 
interventions, including to increase physical activity levels.  
 
There are a number of partnerships with the voluntary and community sector, for 
example, the Tottenham Hotspur Foundation who use sport, mainly football to improve 
health, promote social cohesion and enhance life-skills.  
 
Make A change project, focuses on children in the East of the borough 
 
The NHS Health Checks programme, within the East of the borough, identifies 40-74 
year olds who are not physically active and offers advice and support.   
 
There are 600 acres of parks and open spaces providing formal and informal activities – 
16 have green flag awards.  
 
A Smarter Travel programme and a Biking Borough programme is providing 
opportunities for a number of activities including a programme of behaviour change to 
encourage cycling and community participation events. Also interventions include 
improve the physical environment with road engineering, walk and cycle routes.  The 
East of Haringey is currently worse affected by congestion and the negative health 
impacts than the West.  
 
What more could we do? 

• Public Health, Sustainable Transport, Recreation Services and the NHS are working 
together on Smarter Travel, Biking Borough and other initiatives.  Along with CSPAN, 
this partnership can be strengthened moving forwards.  

• Use existing (e.g. remaining ABG funds) and new resources (e.g. funds released 
from “externalisation) to develop physical activity opportunities proportionally across the 
social gradient and targeting specific groups, informed by local data and evidence of 
what works.   

• Embed use of brief interventions and other psychological approaches in 
programmes.  

• Active for Life’ exercise referral scheme – originally ABG funded; funding is secured 
until October. Further funding opportunities should be sought to continue this 
programme.  

• Seek external opportunities for funding or promoting physical activity, including 
capitalising on the 2012 Olympics 

• In the past services focused on those who are moderately active. Moving forward 
need to focus more on the inactive, including those with disabilities.  

• Increase the use of voluntary sector providers, who bring experience of local 
communities and may access additional funding streams.   

• Use intelligence more e.g. Active People Survey, Sport England databases, 
information from current services to target activities and evidence base of best practice 
to develop services that will maximise their impact on inequalities.   
 

Recommendations 

Page 15



 14 

1. Strengthen partnership working across the council, Public Health, NHS and other 
partners e.g. transport providers to ensure effective use of resources, joined up 
messages and branding.  
2. Focus existing and new on addressing health inequalities, including a shift to focus 
on populations who are amongst the least active   
3. Work with all partners to scale up the availability of brief interventions  
4. Continue to fund the exercise referral scheme to manage/prevent a range of long-
term conditions, as those with the poorest health are amongst the least active and have 
the most to gain from increasing their activity levels.   
5. Ensure leisure centre specifications and ongoing partnership with the new provider 
is developed to improve access for hard to reach groups and include psychological 
approaches.  
6. Continue to improve the physical environment to encourage physical activity e.g. 
maintaining quality Open spaces.  
7. Use intelligence more intelligently.  

 
Related documents 
Sustainable Development Commission “Fairness in a Car Dependent Society” 2011 
 
 
3.2.3 Obesity and Nutrition  
 
Obesity is extremely prevalent and is a major cause of ill-health and premature death. 
Overweight and obesity are linked to numerous health problems including respiratory 
difficulties, musculo-skeletal problems and infertility, to the more serious cardiovascular 
problems (hypertension, stroke and coronary heart disease), diabetes, gallbladder 
disease, certain cancers (breast, endometrial and colon)25. It is estimated that, on 
average, obesity reduces life expectancy between 3 and 13 years26 In the UK the 
prevalence of obesity has more than doubled in the last 25 years.  Nearly a quarter of 
adults are now obese and it is estimated that by 2050, the vast majority of the UK 
population could be mainly obese, with some 40% obese by 2025 and nearly 60% 
obese by 205027.  In England approximately 10% of children are obese and a further 20-
25% of children are overweight28. These increases may mean that children of today 
have a shorter life expectancy than their parents29. It has been predicted that if 
appropriate action is not taken, two-thirds of children will be obese or overweight by 
2050 30  
 
Many factors contribute to obesity including genetic, economic, social, psychological, 
environmental and cultural factors31 32.  Obesity is rising in adults and children in 
England. The increase is likely to be due to environmental and behavioural changes 
which have lead to more sedentary lifestyles and energy-dense diets33.  Healthy eating 
and increased physical activity are primary solutions to preventing and overcoming 
overweight34. Obesity can also cause psychological and social problems, particularly in 
children.  Children who are overweight are much more likely to be overweight as adults 
and experience health problems35 .  The most significant predictor of childhood obesity 
is parental obesity36.  
 
Overweight and obesity disproportionately affects the lower socioeconomic groups and 
socially disadvantaged groups (particularly women)37,38,39.  They include:- 

• Children from low-income families 

Page 16



 15 

• Children from families where at least one parent is obese 

• Individuals of Asian origin (particularly those of south Asian origin) 

• Ethnic groups with a higher than average prevalence of obesity (Black African 
women, Black Caribbean women, Pakistani women, Black Caribbean men, and Irish 
men) 

• Adults in semi-routine and routine occupations 

• People with physical disabilities (particularly in terms of mobility which makes 
exercise difficult) 

• People with learning difficulties 

• Older people 
 
In addition, people diagnosed with a severe and enduring mental illness, particularly 
schizophrenia or bipolar disease, are at increased risk of greater levels of obesity and 
are almost twice as likely to die from CHD as the general population40.   
 
In Haringey there has been a slight increase in overweight and obesity between 2003 
and 2006 (HSE). In 2006 37.7% of men and 26.0% of women are overweight and a 
further 12.7% men and 14.5% women are obese (2006 Health Survey for England 
London Boost). There is also a slight increase with age.  Estimates suggest 
approximately 26,104 adults in Haringey may be obese and 60,313 overweight, and a 
total of 86,417 obese or overweight (see Figure 8).  
  
Figure 8: Estimates of Overweight and Obesity levels in Haringey 

Gender BMI < 25 BMI 25-30 BMI > 30 

Male 45343 34412 11637 

Female 59111 25901 14467 

Total 104454 60313 26104 

*Extrapolated using the 2006 HSE London Boost (Inner London rates) 
Source: HSE 2006 (London Boost)/ GLA R2010 Population Projections (Using 2011) 
 
In Haringey the prevalence of overweight and obese children is measured annually 
through the since 2006. Data on the heights and weights of children in Reception and 
Year 6 in Haringey primary schools is collected, which is then used nationally to 
understand child growth patterns across England as well as to inform local service 
planning.  
 
Childhood obesity rates in Haringey are above the England average (National Child 
Measurement Programme (NCMP)). Figure 9 shows childhood obesity rates for Year 6 
by Ward. 
 
 
Figure x:  Childhood obesity Rates by Ward –Year 6 (2010) 

Page 17



 16 

 
Source: NHS Haringey - NCMP 
 
What should we be doing? 
The evidence for effectiveness is limited, but much good practice exists.  It is important 
to focus on prevention of obesity as well as treatment.  A multi-disciplinary, long-term 
strategy to tackling obesity is essential.  
To prevent obesity, in addition to appropriate diet and nutrition the following have some 
success41:  

• Community based physical activity interventions; long term success is more likely if 
behavioural approaches, tailored to individuals are used.  

• Moderate intensity physical activity, especially walking show longer term successes 

• Interventions designed specifically for adults over 50+ are likely to have short and 
long term success 
 
To treat obesity and  achieve weight loss in adults was concluded as follows:- 

• Physical activity alone, diet alone and physical activity and diet combined are 
effective interventions. 

• There is evidence that a combination of behavioural therapy techniques in 
conjunction with other weight loss approaches is effective. 
 
NICE42 made recommendations to prevent, identify, assess and manage obesity in 
adults and children to a range of organisations including the NHS, local authorities, 
schools and early years providers, workplaces and the public.  Key priorities for 
implementation by local authorities included:  
“working with local partners, such as industry and voluntary organisations, to create and 
manage more safe spaces for incidental and planned physical activity, addressing as a 
priority any concerns about safety, crime and inclusion”, by:  

• providing facilities and schemes such as cycling and walking routes, cycle parking, 
area maps and safe play areas  

StroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroud

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Bounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland Park

StroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroudStroud

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Bounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland Park

AlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandra

Crouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch End

Fortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis Green

HighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgate

HornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell Hill

Noel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel Park

St Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann's

Tottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham Green

Tottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleTottenham HaleWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest Green

White Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart Lane

WoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodside

Year 6 - % obese

29.4 to 31.1  (3)

27.5 to 29.4  (3)

23  to 27.5  (4)

15.3 to 23   (4)

7.2 to 15.3  (5)

Page 18



 17 

• making streets cleaner and safer, through measures such as traffic calming, 
congestion charging, pedestrian crossings, cycle routes, lighting and walking schemes  

• ensuring buildings and spaces are designed to encourage people to be more 
physically active (for example, through positioning and signing of stairs, entrances and 
walkways)  

• considering in particular people who require tailored information and support, 
especially inactive, vulnerable groups. 
 
For childhood obesity the available evidence on the cost effectiveness of different 
interventions suggests the most cost effect interventions are multi-faceted, supporting 
children and their families to eat more healthily and become more active. This kind of 
approach can be used for a targeted group of children, but it can also be implemented 
on a larger scale to help prevent and reduce obesity. A whole range of different 
interventions, spanning health services, schools, the transport system, the food industry 
and the physical environment are required43. 
 
What are we doing?  

• The Haringey Obesity Strategy - offers practical guidance for the prevention, 
management and treatment of obesity with the aim of reducing health inequalities and 
ill-health, aimed primarily at health care professionals.  

• The Adult Obesity Care Pathway - provides a formalised structure for high quality, 
timely, standardised and equitable care. 

• Haringey Health Trainer Service provides brief intervention, one to one advice and 
follow up (see section 3.2.5) 

• Commercial community-based weight management on referral programme (for 
obese adults (BMI >30) aged 40-74 who have undergone an NHS Health Check) 

• Draft Hot Food Takeaway Policy – addresses concerns regarding the impact that the 
proliferation of hot food takeaway outlets has on children, young people and the 
vulnerable and sets out recommendations for the refusal of planning permission. 

• Haringey Food and Nutrition Strategy 

• A broad range of physical activity interventions (see above in physical activity 
section of the report) 

• NHS Health Check programme – aims to identify adults aged 40-74 at high risk of 
CVD and intervening to reduce the risk, including supporting life style change (see 
section 3.2.5)   

• Haringey Nutrition and Dietetics Service – providing one-to-one support to patients 
who require support and guidance regarding nutritional intake. In addition, a number of 
community-based interventions have been rolled out across the borough.  Clinic times, 
locations and type of support are varied to improve access. Some languages are 
spoken. Training is available for community groups.  

• Evidence on childhood obesity in Haringey was received by The Cross Party 
Working Group in the paper entitled ‘Giving Every Child the Best Start in Life’ discussed 
in the June meeting.  
 
What more could we do? 

• Consider a whole system approach to tackling obesity in the local population 
including spanning health services, schools, the transport system, the food industry and 
the physical environment are required 

• Local awareness raising, including primary prevention. 

Page 19



 18 

• A wider range of community-based weight management programmes and clinic 
options   

• Multi-component programmes using approaches based on psychological principles. 

• Scale up borough wide training programmes for brief intervention to a range of staff 
and volunteers 

• interventions for people with learning disabilities or mental health problems and their 
carers.  

• promote physical activity across the social gradient and in target groups (see section 
above) to both prevent and help treat obesity 

• Consider use of planning regulations to restrict plans for fast food outlets in the 
borough and promote healthy food options and labelling. Further joint work between 
Trading Standards and Public Health on nutrition and obesity  
 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
1. Consider adopting a whole system approach to tackling obesity in the local 
population  
2. Focus on addressing health inequalities by focusing on populations who are at higher 
risk of overweight and obesity. 
3. Commission interventions to address childhood obesity using an evidence-based 
whole family approach. 
4. Work closely with key external borough partners to maximise funding and other 
resource opportunities. 
5.  Implement a local awareness raising campaign. 
6. Commission a range of adult weight management services. 
7. Adopt and implement a policy for the restriction of fast food outlets and promoting 
healthy food options.  
 

 
3.2.4 Alcohol Related Harm  
 
Harm due to alcohol are considerably more apparent in more deprived groups. The 
most deprived fifth of the UK population suffer two or three times greater loss of life 
attributable to alcohol, three to five times greater mortality due to alcohol-specific 
causes and two to five times more admissions to hospital because of alcohol than 
wealthy areas44. The inequality ratio is most apparent in men and there is a direct dose-
response relationship between alcohol consumption and death45  
 
Haringey’s alcohol related hospital admissions rates have almost doubled in the period 
2004/05 -2008/9 for men and women (see Figure 9).  This includes admissions that are 
partially attributable to alcohol, such as hypertension,  and those that are ‘wholly’ 
attributable to alcohol e.g. ethanol poisoning. Middle aged and older men make up the 
majority of alcohol related hospital admissions and apart from ‘any other ethnic group’ 
Irish men had the highest wholly attributable rate of admissionsv.Alcohol admissions in 

                                                 
v
 Analysis of Hospital Episodes Data Haringey Public Health 2009 

Page 20



 19 

the under 18’s account for a small percentage of overall admissions,vi (55 between 
2006/07-2008/9.)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 9: Trend in alcohol related admissions (2002-2010) 
 
 

 
Source: North West Public Health Observatory 
 
 
Figure 10: Alcohol related admissions in Haringey by cause and gender (2008-09) 
vii 
 

                                                 
vi
 In under 18’s only alcohol specific conditions are counted 

vii
 The alcohol specific rate calculates a rate based on deaths wholly attributable to alcohol.  The alcohol 

attributable deaths are calculated according to the application of attributable fractions to deaths from certain 

conditions.  For more information see Alcohol attributable fractions for England; alcohol attributable mortality 

and hospital admissions, NWPHO 2008 

Page 21



 20 

 
High blood pressure is the commonest cause of alcohol related admissions (see Figure 
10). Mental and behavioural disorders, the second commonest cause, include:  
drunkenness, acute intoxication withdrawal, harmful dependence, delirium tremens, 
psychotic disorder etc. Men over 50 are most represented in this category. Males 
outnumber females on most conditions; the one notable exception is “other diseases”.  
This category includes spontaneous abortion, epilepsy, ischaemic stroke and psoriasis.  
Crude rates for ethnicity indicate: White British, African Caribbean and ‘any other white’ 
men are most represented in alcohol related hypertension admissions. White British, 
any other white and Irish men most represented in alcohol specific mental and 
behavioural disorders.  
 
 
Figure 11 Alcohol specific and alcohol attributable/related deaths, per 100,000 
population (all ages, directly standardised) 
 

Page 22



 21 

 
 
Figure 11 shows alcohol specific and attributable/related deaths by gender. If all alcohol 
attributable and alcohol specific deaths among men under 75 in Haringey were 
prevented, it is estimated that life expectancy at birth of men in the borough would 
increase by almost one yearviii 
 
Figure 12 shows an analysis on individual patients as opposed to   admissions - 
Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) data.  By analysing the individuals admitted as 
opposed to just the episodes (HES) we are able to more accurately understand where 
we need to target prevention activities. The data suggests that partially attributable 
admissions are more concentrated in the East in particular St Ann’s. Tottenham Green 
and Bruce Grove.  The picture is broadly similar for partially attributable admissions.  
 
Table 4 number of individual male wholly attributable alcohol admission 2010/11 
 

                                                 
viii
 North West Public Health Observatory, 2011 

 

Page 23



 22 

WestWestWestWestWestWestWestWestWest

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

White Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart Lane

Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Bounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green
Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland Park

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

TottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenham

 Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale

WestWestWestWestWestWestWestWestWest

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

White Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart LaneWhite Hart Lane

Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen

Seven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven SistersSeven Sisters

HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Bounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds GreenBounds Green
Northumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland ParkNorthumberland Park

Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce Bruce 

GroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGroveGrove

TottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenhamTottenham

 Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale Hale

AlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandra

Crouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch End

Fortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis GreenFortis Green

HighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgate

HornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell HillMuswell Hill

Noel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel Park

St Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann's

Tottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham GreenTottenham Green

WoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodside

Number of Admissions

258 to 274

250 to 258

216 to 250

175 to 216

131 to 175

 
 
 
Whilst Health Inequalities is a factor in alcohol use and young people in that, Looked 
After Children, School Excludees and children of substance misusing parents are more 
likely to develop alcohol and or substance misuse problems, it is not a leading cause of 
death amongst young people and is therefore not a feature of this paper.  
 
Regulatory issues include:  increasing availability of alcohol  through off licences  and 
low cost alcohol though supermarkets.  Spot checks for underage sales in Haringey 
have a high failure rate (i.e. sales are made) 
 
What should we be doing? What are we doing?  
The work to tackle alcohol related harm in the borough is informed by the boroughs 
Alcohol Strategy and Action plan, overseen by the Alcohol Strategy Group and chaired 
by the lead member for Communities. The plan, as in previous years covers alcohol 
related health harms, community safety, and children and young people. 
 
HINST is clear that key to reducing the life expectancy gap in Haringey, and in particular 
death from cardiovascular disease, is a reduction in the upward trend in alcohol related 
hospital admissions. The main evidence base for what works to prevent dependent 
drinking (and therefore improve life expectancy) is Identification and Brief Interventions 
(IBA)46. These interventions have traditionally been delivered in medical settings 
(Primary Care, A & E and certain wards). The plan is to extend IBA out into community 
settings.   
 
In recognition that alcohol is often an contributing factor in the development of CVD,  
and as a further means of identifying those who are ‘increasing and higher risk drinkers’,   
the decision was made locally to incorporate alcohol screening into the local the NHS 
Health Checks programme in East Haringey (see section 3.2.5).  
 

Page 24



 23 

A programme of street outreach to traditional ‘street drinkers’ and work with Polish 
community through street outreach and  liaison at  North Middlesex A & E,  is also an 
integral part of the prevention programme.  
 
A pilot on the effectiveness of IBA in the workplace is currently being evaluated by 
Middlesex University (North London Hub Workplace IBA Pilot). Haringey was one of the 
boroughs to take part in this. Occupational health, HR and some Union representatives 
were trained in IBA . 
 
Ex –service users have been trained in IBA and are now delivering this at some of the 
GP surgeries in the borough. 
 
Alcohol enforcement: licensing applications are dealt with in accordance with statutory 
requirements. Spot checks are undertaken as with tobacco for underage sales. 
Counterfeit is common. 
 
A range of universal prevention/early intervention and targeted prevention activities are 
in place for young people in the borough. This is supported by a dedicated Tier 3 
service for those children who have started to develop substance misuse problems 
(Insight). The most effective means of preventing substance misuse problems in young 
people is by early assessment of risk of those most vulnerable. This is the approach 
adopted in Haringey by services working with vulnerable young people.  Children of 
substance misusing parents are further supported by a service which works with them 
and their parents to reduce the harm caused by alcohol and drugs and attempt to 
impact on intergenerational substance misuse problems (COSMIC). 
 
What more could we do? 
Brief Interventions to be delivered in non-medical settings by groups of staff who may 
come into contact with those who are increasing or higher risk drinkers. This is in line 
with recent NICE guidance in this area47 . 
Targeted prevention – planned IBA training of staff working with Irish and Polish 
communities via Haringey’s Irish centre and the PEEC. 
 
Campaigning to make legislative changes in both alcohol and gambling availability. 
 

Recommendations 
1. Consideration should be given for making the pilot workplace IBA project a 
permanent feature of services offered by Occupational Health in the local authority 
(dependent in part on outcome of research). 
2. To support the above:  robust workplace policies on substance misuse need to be in 
place 
3. Consideration should be given for including question on alcohol use in older people’s 
assessment forms in adult social care (link to falls etc).  
4. Consideration should be given for prioritising training of Key staff groups in IBA e.g.  
Safeguarding staff (First Response), Domestic Violence Staff, SOVA, Housing staff, 
Neighbourhood Action Officers, in order to extend range of places IBA can be delivered. 
5. Further joining up work between physical activity and alcohol e.g. joint brief 
interventions work with alcohol IBA (see also section 3.2.5.) and propose the new 
leisure centre specifications include expectation that staff employed will be trained in 
IBA 

Page 25



 24 

 
Related documents  
Alcohol Needs Assessment 
Haringey’s’ Alcohol Strategy click on hyperlink: Dying For A Drink? 
 
 
3.2.5 Generic prevention programmes 
Lower socio-economic groups, certain BME groups and “vulnerable groups” such as 
those with mental health problems have a higher risk of most of the life style risk factors 
described above. A social gradient exists for each factor. There is commonality in 
approaches to reduce their prevalence including: brief interventions, awareness 
campaigns, regulatory mechanisms and changes to the physical environment. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
1. Consider developing a generic approach to health improvement/prevention working 
with all partners across the range of approaches to include: alcohol, physical activity, 
obesity and tobacco control.   
2. Work with social care and other key staff to support training in brief interventions, 
raising awareness of lifestyle factors and appropriate referral   
 

 
Two programmes NHS Health checks and Health Trainers, are now described. They 
are key to addressing a number of lifestyle factors within Haringey and focus on the 
East of the borough. 
 
 
3.2.5.1 NHS Health Checks 
The NHS Health Checks programme is a key outcome in the Public Health Outcomes 
Framework.  It aims to identify those at risk of vascular diseases: heart disease, stroke, 
diabetes and kidney disease, and to ensure appropriate advice, support and follow up.  
Those identified as high risk usually require medication and recall each year, others 
require lifestyle support and recall each five years.  It is focused on those aged 40-74 
years and is based upon good evidence of effectiveness and cost effectiveness.  If 
delivered effectively it would have a major impact on inequalities in life expectancy.  
 
What are we doing? 
The programme commenced in Haringey in February 2010.  So far more than 3500 
people have been assessed by the programme. The majority of the Health Checks have 
been undertaken in primary care, with incentive payments, mainly in East Haringey.  
Others have been undertaken through a partnership with the British Heart Foundation 
targeting high risk groups in community centres and a one off event at World Stroke 
Day.  Support to patients and staff within the Health Checks programme is provided as 
appropriate including: the Health Trainers services (see below), weight management 
vouchers, the exercise referral scheme and support from the stop smoking service.  
Training, IT and protocols support staff undertaking the checks.   
 
What more could we do? 

Page 26



 25 

The programme has been well received by patients and staff.  Recurrent funding is 
available, although further funding is required for full roll out. The programme will 
continue in primary care this year, mainly in the East.   To maximise the impact of the 
programme it is essential that the public, particularly in high risk groups, take up the 
programme and are supported to make lifestyle changes or comply with medication as 
appropriate.  The publicity, marketing and engagement with the communities about the 
primary care programme to date has been limited.  It may also be helpful to pilot 
community based programmes in community or work place settings.  Ultimately the 
programme needs to roll out to screen 9000 people per annum.  
 

 
Recommendations 
 
1) Engage key communities and publicise the programme to ensure uptake of the 
programme  
2) Prioritise investment in lifestyle support services linked with this programme (see 
physical activity, obesity, stop smoking services above) 
3) Link current health checks programmes e.g. in council staff,  learning disability 
services with the formal NHS Health Checks approach in order to maximise outcomes 
from these health checks.  
4) Develop community champions (volunteers) to support health trainers and promote 
key health messages  

 
3.2.5.2 Health Trainers 
The NHS Health Trainer initiative is a national programme, established in 2006. Health 
Trainers support local people who are in circumstances that put them at a greater risk of 
poor health.  They are drawn from the communities within which they work or 
knowledgeable about the community.  They are trained to use evidence-based 
techniques based on psychological evidence and theories to help people change 
behaviours that are known to cause ill-health.  Health Trainers provide one-to-one 
advice, motivation and practical support to individuals in their local communities on how 
to make healthier lifestyle choices in the areas of smoking, alcohol use, physical activity 
and healthy eating.  Their role involves working with clients to set goals and agree an 
action plan, using a client-centred approach.  They also monitor and review client 
progress and revise plans when necessary. 
 
What are we doing now? 
The Haringey Health Trainer Service was established in 2009 and is a key initiative 
through which to address health inequalities. It operates in the East of the borough out 
of a range of community and primary care venues.  Haringey health trainers are drawn 
from local communities and have been trained in line with national standards and have 
ongoing supervision and training.  They give advice and support, raise awareness about 
health issues and refer to local services as appropriate.  
 
What more could we do? 
The service has recently changed management and is being relaunched.  It is important 
that this service is used to capacity by target groups for one to one support.  It would be 
useful to develop a pathway to support lifestyle change and promote health: community 
champions who market local health improvement programmes and raise awareness of 
signs and symptoms of illnesses; health trainers who give basic one to one support in 

Page 27



 26 

life style change; more specialist lifestyle support e.g. stop smoking services, exercise 
referral.   
 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
1. Council staff to publicise and refer target groups to the Health Trainers service  
2. Consider developing a whole system approach or pathway for health improvement 
locally including training and education of residents from local communities.  This could 
be taken forward with partners e.g. Tottenham Hotspur Foundation 
 

 
 
3.3 Early intervention (adults over 40) 
 
As demonstrated above in “the scarf” in Figure 3, CVD and cancer are major 
contributors to the life expectancy gap. Additional long term conditions that contribute to 
the gap are diabetes and COPD (an important respiratory disease). Diabetes is 
important both as a risk factor for heart disease and stroke and prevalent in its own right 
particularly within BME (including South Asian and Black) groups and deprived groups. 
Evidence suggests that the activities that support early intervention of these long term 
conditions are some of the most cost effective and effective interventions to impact on 
the Life Expectancy Gap, particularly within the short term4, 5 .  Local information shows 
under-diagnosis of many of these diseases and their risk factors, high rates of 
admissions, and other indicators suggesting late diagnosis (e.g. indicators of poor 
diabetic control, poor cancer survival). Many of these indicators are worse in East 
Haringey than West and amongst lower socio-economic groups or BME groups.  Figure 
13 shows diabetes admissions are much higher in East than West Haringey.  A 
systematic approach to diagnosis and treatment is required to tackle the socio-
economic gradient and reduce inequalities in outcomes.   
 
National guidance suggests efforts to encourage early intervention and thus reduce the 
Life Expectancy Gap should focus on the over 40s.  This is consistent with the Haringey 
picture where the majority of the life expectancy gap is in the over 40s (as shown in 
Figure 3).  
 
Early intervention is mainly within the remit of the NHS. However, there are key 
opportunities for the Council, partners and communities to engage in this and thus scale 
up the impact on target groups. This section gives a brief overview and makes 
recommendations for the Council to consider.  
 
 
Figure 13: Estimated diabetes admissions in Haringey 

Page 28



 27 

 
Source: Mosaic 
 
 
3.3.1 Heart disease, stroke, diabetes and lung disease   
 
What should we be doing?  

• Raise awareness/community engagement regarding signs and symptoms of 
disease4  

• Early detection: use of primary care disease registers, case finding. Early 
management of disease and risk factors e.g. treat atrial fibrillation (irregular pulse rate), 
high blood pressure (good evidence of effectiveness), control of blood sugars in 
diabetics and steroids in COPD.  

• Secondary prevention e.g. promote healthy life-styles in those who are already ill 
e.g. cardiac rehabilitation, smoking cessation in COPD, weight management in 
diabetics. 

• Modelling, analysis and understanding of rates of detection and management of 
disease and risk factors within the population 
 
What are we doing  

• Primary prevention – see section 3.2 above  

• Community awareness raising: FAST campaign for stroke. Haringey, in 
partnership with Diabetes UK has trained up community champions to undertake risk 
assessments and raise awareness of diabetes in at risk communities.   

• Early detection: actions to increase atrial fibrillation and high blood pressure 
diagnosis.  NHS Health Checks (see above). COPD early case finding via the stop 
smoking service and additional training (Warwick training) and ongoing educational 
programmes for GPs in diabetes management, including in North East Haringey.   

• Secondary prevention: cardiac rehabilitation programme, exercise referral 
programme for people with long term conditions in East Haringey 

• Diabetes epidemiological needs assessment undertaken 

Page 29



 28 

• Awareness raising and generic health checks for people with Learning Disability 
to identify risk factors and disease early and to educate  
 
What more could we do  

• Further engage with the council in awareness raising campaigns and 
opportunities for early detection of these diseases 

• Work in partnership to promote secondary prevention advice e.g. brief 
intervention and appropriate referral for lifestyle advice.  

• Scale up effective interventions in primary care to ensure early intervention 
particularly in those most at risk 

• Sustain the exercise referral campaign (threatened through loss of ABG funding) 

• Development of self-management programmes, particularly in target groups 
following a gap in the service.  

• More intelligent use of information to target groups or areas with delay or 
underdiagnosis and inequity in service access (recommended in Haringey HINST 
review) 

• Educate council employees of their own risks and early signs and symptoms of 
heart disease and stroke.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Recommendations  
 
1. Support community engagement to raise awareness of early signs and symptoms, 
particularly in at risk communities  
2. Training and education of council staff e.g. social care staff to raise awareness of 
early signs and symptoms and encourage self management and referral as appropriate, 
particularly in high risk target groups  
3. Training and education of council staff to undertake brief interventions for life style 
change particularly in target groups 
4. Council, NHS and partners to work in partnership to develop local intelligence to 
identify needs and target groups to target early interventions  
5. Work with occupational health to develop educational programmes to raise 
awareness within council employees of early signs and symptoms of key long term 
conditions 

 
Related documents 
Diabetes Needs Assessment  
Stroke Needs Assessment 
 
3.3.2. Cancer  
Cancer mortality contributes to 25% of gap in Life Expectancy between Haringey and 
England (see Figure 3 above).  Of this, lung cancer mortality in Haringey is responsible 

Page 30



 29 

for approximately 6% of the life expectancy gap, bowel cancer 4% (mortality rate 
significantly higher than England) and breast cancer mortality approximately 0.5-1%.   
After smoking, the biggest impact on mortality is late diagnosis of cancer.  Therefore 
lives can be saved by earlier diagnosis – particularly breast, colorectal and lung4 .  
Survival rates for breast cancer are linked to deprivation48 , with lower SEG having 
poorer survival (even for breast cancer).  Local data shows that screening uptake varies 
by GP and by population group.  Cancer screening programmes show some link with 
deprivation with lower uptake of screening programmes in more deprived groups (a 
strong link for bowel screening shown in local Mosaic and social marketing research) 
and certain ethnic minority groups have lower uptake of screening programmes49.  
 
What should we be doing?  
In addition to addressing lifestyle factors (section 3.2 above), key actions to address 
inequalities in cancer mortality include:  

• Raise awareness of symptoms and signs of cancers and importance of Cancer 
screening programmes through community engagement programmes, media, 
advertising campaigns – particularly aimed at target groups 

• Early detection of cancer through- engagement with primary care in early 
diagnosis and management of cancers 

• Improving uptake of cancer screening programmes (breast, bowel and cervical), 
aimed at reducing incidence and mortality from cancers, particularly in target groups.  

• Use of intelligence and audits to identify target groups e.g. areas/populations 
where late presentation of cancers impact on survival and cancer screening uptake 
poor.  
 
What are we doing?  

• “Haringey Life Savers” works with 4 GP practices and community groups in high 
prevalence areas to raise awareness and encourage early diagnosis of the four 
common cancers.  A similar recently established programme focuses just on bowel 
cancer and bowel cancer screening in the East, working with the Tottenham Hotspur 
Foundation.  A recently appointed GP lead for cancer is working with GPs to support 
early diagnosis based upon information from profiles of cancer by GP practice.  

• Uptake in breast and bowel cancer screening has improved in recent years (see 
Figure 14 below).  Social marketing, mosaic information is informing and a recent health 
equity audit on breast cancer screening are informing local action plans to increase 
uptake of breast, bowel and cervical cancer screening programmes. These include a 
health trainer working specifically on this issue in Haringey.   
 
Figure 14: Cancer screening uptake in Haringey (2007-2011) 

Page 31



 30 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2007 2008 2009 2010 Q1-2011 Q2-2011

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 (
%

)

Breast cancer Cervical cancer Bowel cancer 

 
Source: NHS Haringey 
 
What more could we do?  
Most of the projects above are based upon external, short term funding.  Whilst these 
are appropriately targeted and achieving good outcomes, a more systematic, scaled up 
and sustainable approach is required across primary care, community care and 
communities to maximise the impact on inequalities in cancer outcomes.  
 
 

 
Recommendations  
1. The council staff and communications support programmes to raise awareness of 
early signs and symptoms of common cancers and cancer screening programmes in 
target groups, informed by local information.   
 

 
 
Related documents 
GP Profiles for Cancers in Haringey 
Haringey cancer needs assessment (draft) 
Breast Cancer Screening Overview and Scrutiny Review 
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/decisions/overview_and_scrutiny/scrutiny_revi
ews/scrutiny-reviews-2009-10.htm 
 
 
 3.4 Seasonal excess deaths.  
 
Seasonal excess deaths are deaths in excess of the annual average and most typically 
occur in winter. However, seasonal excess deaths can arise at other times, for example 
during periods of very hot weather. 
Excess winter deaths are mainly due to respiratory, cardiovascular causes, and 
infectious diseases including seasonal flu. Excess winter deaths tend to be observed in 
older people, and those who are socially isolated or live alone.  People, who live in more 
deprived areas, or those who are unemployed, may additionally be at risk of fuel 

Page 32



 31 

poverty. There are, on average, 50-55 excess deaths every winter in Haringey with 
excess winter mortality indexix well below London and England.  
 
What should we be doing? What are we doing? 
Work to tackle excess seasonal deaths in Haringey was reviewed by the National 
Support Team for Health Inequalities in October 2009. 
 
A range of positive interventions and good practice were identified including:  

• Development of ‘Affordable Warmth Strategy’  

• Comprehensive cover for the Community Matron services; 

• The use of assistive technology such as Telehealth & Telemedicine; 

• Social housing in the Borough has been mapped and used when accessing the 
focus of certain targeted activity/campaigns; 

• Year on year increased coverage of seasonal flu vaccinations;  

• Thermal image photography of the whole Borough. 
 
Since then further action, in line with the identified good practice has progressed:  

• Affordable Warmth Strategy launched November 2009. Delivery group has been 
set up which includes representatives from: Housing Associations, Utility Companies, 
Homes for Haringey, Age Concern and Haringey Forum for Older People 

• Promoting the take up of Warm Front scheme by eligible Haringey residents: 981 
households provided with £787,629 worth of heating & insulation measures in 
2010/2011 

• “RE:NEW” demonstration project in Bruce Grove & West Green. This is a project 
to improve energy efficiency in vulnerable households. 527 households have been 
provided with £125,000 worth of energy saving measures 

• Warmth and Comfort scheme: funded by Targeted Funding Stream monies from 
Government via North London sub region it provided heating upgrades / new systems to 
vulnerable clients. 226 households provided with £408,000 worth of heating and 
insulation measures in 2009/2010 

• Decent Homes Scheme: funded by Targeted Funding Stream monies from 
Government via North London sub Region. 123 vulnerable households provided with 
£238,000 worth of improvements to bring their accommodation up to the Decent Homes 
standard in 2010/2011 

• Web pages are maintained to provide up to date information for residents 

• Training provided to staff – e.g course being delivered on assisting residents with 
fuel debt  
 
 
What more should we be doing? 
The following actions are in development:  

• Putting together a database which will contain details of all the various energy 
efficiency and heating improvement schemes that have been operational throughout 
Haringey in the past ten years. This will be on line and accessible by a number of 
organisations  

                                                 
ix
 The excess winter mortality index = (EWM / average non-winter deaths) x 100. The EWM index shows the 

percentage increase for deaths in winter months compared to average summer deaths. It is calculated so that 

comparisons can be made between gender, age groups and regions. 

Page 33



 32 

• Ensure that the profile of fuel poverty remains high within Haringey, particularly 
given the number of vulnerable residents in the borough and the speed with which fuel 
prices have increased and will continue to increase . For example through: staff 
briefings and updates, promotion and publicity activities 

• Contributing to the London Assembly investigation into Fuel Poverty 

• Implement a scheme similar to the Seasonal Health Interventions Network 
(SHINE) in Islington. Current intention is to work initially with the Whittington Hospital 
and roll out to other hospitals in the future 

• Seek to work with GP surgeries throughout the borough to identify people and 
provide assistance, hence averting their admission to hospital. 

• Strengthen links between Public Health, NHS, council departments and voluntary 
sector to promote key messages to vulnerable people 
 
 

Recommendations 
1. Further data analyses to be performed to identify those at highest risk of excess 
winter deaths locally; 
2. There are a number of ‘registers’ of vulnerable people being drawn up by different 
agencies/professional services. A ‘list of lists’ (i.e. an overview of who is the key contact 
in a locality/cross District in relation to specific groups of vulnerable people) would be an 
important strategic resource 
3. Agree and promote key messages to vulnerable groups across agencies.  

  
 
4.  Conclusion 
 
This paper presents the evidence, and proposes recommendations to tackle the life 
expectancy gap in Haringey.  The recommendations are for consideration and to inform 
priority actions for the developing Health and Well Being Strategy.   
Key themes emerge throughout this paper. These include:  

• The importance of strong leadership, governance and strategy4. This includes 
working in partnership to maximise collective use of resources 

• Better use of health intelligence e.g. mosaic, service audits, needs assessments 
to target interventions appropriately and monitor their impact 

• Allocate resources and interventions to tackle the socio-economic gradient and 
address inequalities in key target groups 

• A whole system, partnership approach to prevention e.g. health service, transport 
planners, trading standards, leisure and other partners including voluntary sector work 
together 

• An important role for the council in early intervention e.g. raising awareness and 
early onward referral of long term conditions 

• A joined up approach to prevention, for example brief intervention training across 
alcohol, physical activity, obesity for a wide range of staff and volunteers 
 
 
Acknowledgements  
My thanks go to the many who have contributed to this document including: Keith Betts, 
Dr Vanessa Bogle, Tristan Brice, Anne Daley, Dr Jeanelle De Gruchy, Marc Dorfman, 

Page 34



 33 

Tamara Djuretic, Joan Hancox, John Hathers,  Andrea Keeble, Liz Marnham, John 
Morris,  Marion Morris, Susan Otiti, Lisa Redfern, Graeme Walsh, Fiona Yung 
 
Dr Fiona Wright, Assistant Director of Public Health, Haringey 
11th July 2011 
 
 
REFERENCES 
                                                 
1 Fair Society, Health Lives: The Marmot Review.  2010.   
2 Towards a Health Inequalities Strategy.  Paper for CEMB.  Haringey Council. 2010.   
3 Department of Health, National Service Framework for Mental Health, 1999. London: Department of Health, 

1999.. 
4 Redoubling Efforts to achieve the 2010 National Health Inequalities Life Expectancy Target.  Resource Pack. 

Department of Health.  March 2010.  
5 Five Year Strategy 2009-2013. NHS Nottingham City.  
6 Cross Cutting Review on Health Inequalities. Department of Health, 2002.  
7 Meltzer, H. OPCS Surveys of Psychiatric Morbidity in Great Britain Report 1 the prevalence of psychiatric 

morbidity amongst adults living in private households. London : HMSO , 1995) 
8 Health Survey for England 2006-8 
9 Smoking Cessation in primary care, pharmacies, local authorities and work places, particularly for manual 

working groups, pregnant women and hard to reach communities. NICE, 2008). 
10 Curtis and Netten, 2006. 
11 Working with Black and Minority Ethnic Communities,: A guide for Stop Smoking Service managers, 

Department for Communities and Local Government) 
12 The Need for Effective Mass Media Pubic Education Campaigns As Part of Comprehensive Tobacco Control 

Programs, www.stopsmokingcampaigns.org.uk , 2007) NICE PH 10. 
13 Health: Everyone’s Business (2010), A Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Haringey Council, 

March 2011.   
14
 World Health Organization. (2002). World health report. Geneva: World Health 

Organization. 
15
 Department of Health. (2004). At least five a week. Evidence on the impact of 

physical activity and its relationship to health. Department of Health. London. 
16
 Department of Health. (2000a). National Service Framework: Coronary Heart 

Disease. Department of Health. London 
17 Sport England (2010). Active People Survey 4. 

http://www.sportengland.org/research/active_people_survey/active_people_survey_4.aspx) 
18 Health Development Agency (2005). The effectiveness of pubic health interventions for increasing physical 

activity among adults: a review of reviews. Evidence briefing summary. Health Development Agency. 
19 National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence. (2006). Four commonly used methods to increase physical 

activity. http//www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH2 

 
20 Department of Health. (2007). Department of Health statement on exercise referral (March 2007). 

http://dh.gov.uk/en/publicationsandstatistics/Bulletins/theweek/Chiefexecutivebulletin/DH_072874. 

 
21 National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence. (2008). Promoting physical activity in the workplace. 

http://www.nice.org.uk/PH13 

 
22 National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence. (2008). Physical activity and the environment. 

http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/PH8 

 
23 DS Morrison, M Pettigrew, H Thomson “What are the most effective ways of improving population health 

through transport interventions? Evidence from systematic reviews, JECH, 2002.  (there may be something more 

recent) 
24 Sustainable Development Commission “Fairness in a Car-dependent Society” 2011 
25 World Health Organisation, (2003).  Obesity and overweight.  Geneva: WHO. 

Page 35



 34 

                                                                                                                                                           
26
 Jebb S (2004) Obesity: causes and consequences. 

www.medicinepublishing.co.uk/resources/sample_pages/wohm.1.1.38.pdf 

 

 
28
 Canoy, D. and Buchan, I. (2007).  Challenges in obesity.  Short Science Review.  Foresight Tackling Obesities: 

Future Choices.  Obesity Reviews, 8(s1), 1-11 (htpp://www.foresight.gov.uk) 

 
29
 Reilly, J., Dorosty, A., and Emmett, P. (1999) Prevalence of overweight and obesity in British children: Cohort 

Study.  British Medical Journal, 319, 1039. 

 
30
 McPherson, K., Marsh, T. and Brown, M. (2007). Modelling Future Trends in Obsity and the Impact of Health.  

Foresight Tackling Obesities:  Future Choices. http//www.foresight.gov.uk. 

 
31
 HM Government. (2008). Healthy weight, healthy lives: A cross-government 

strategy for England. HM Government, London. 
32 Foresight. (2007). Tackling Obesities: Future Choices 

http://www.foresight.gov.uk/Obesity/Obesity_final/index.html. 
3
 National Audit Office, (2001).  Tackling Obesity in England.  London: TSO. 
344
 Department of Health, (2004).  Choosing health: Making healthy choices easier.  London: Department of 

Health. 
35 Summerbell CD, Ashton V, Campbell KJ, Edmunds L, Kelly S and Waters E (2006)  Interventions for treating 

obesity in children (Review)  The Cochrane Collaboration, The Cochrane Library 2006, Issue 1. 
36 Reilly, J., Dorosty, A. and Emmett, P.  (1999).  Prevalence of Overweight and Obesity in British Children: 

Cohort Study.  British Medical Journal, 319(7216): 1039. 
37 Avenell, A., Broom, J., Brown. T. J., Poobalan, A., et al. (2004).  Systematic review of the long-term effects 

and economic consequences of treatments for obesity and implications for health improvement.  Health 

Technology Assessment. 8(21): 1-473. 
38 NHS Health and Social Care Information Centre. (2005).  Health Survey for England 2004: The health of ethnic 

minority groups – headline tables. London: NHS Health and Social Care Information Centre. 
39 Sproston, K., Primatesta, P. (eds) (2004). Health Survey for England 2003. Volume 2: Risk factors for 

cardiovascular disease. London: TSO.  
40 Department of Health. (2006).  Choosing Health: Supporting the physical health needs of people with severe 

mental illness. Commissioning framework. London: Department of Health 
41
 Health Development Agency. (2003). The management of obesity and overweight 

An analysis of reviews of diet, physical activity and behavioural approaches 

Evidence briefing. Health Development Agency. 
42 National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE), (2006).  Obesity: The prevention, identification, 

assessment and management of overweight and obesity in adults and children.  London: NICE.  

www.nice.org.uk/guidance/CG43 
43
 Foresight Tackling Obesities: Future Choices – Project Report. Government Office of Statistics. 2007 

44
 HM Government (2007) Safe, Sensible, Social: The next steps in the national Alcohol Strategy. London 

45
 White I, Altman D, Nanchahal K. Alcohol consumption and mortality: modelling risks for men and women at 

different ages. Br Med J 2002; 325 
46 Moyer A et al (2002) Brief Interventions for alcohol problems: a meta analytic review of controlled 

investigations in treatment-seeking and non-treatment seeking populations. Addiction: March: 97 (3):279-92 
47 Public Health Guidance 24: Preventing the development of hazardous and harmful drinking NICE 2010 
48 www.statistics.gov.uk 

49 NHS Haringey Breast Screening Programme: Health Equity Audit, March 2010 

Page 36



Haringey’s Draft Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy
2012-2015

CONSULTATION

20th September – 20th December 2011

Page 37



Foreword
We believe that everyone has the right to enjoy good health. However, 

many of our residents don’t have this opportunity and there are large health 

inequalities across the borough. Residents in the poorest parts of Haringey 

are not only more likely to die prematurely, but they will also spend a greater 

proportion of those shorter lives unwell. We understand that to reduce these 

health inequalities we need to focus not only on health, but also on the wider 

determining factors by decreasing poverty and deprivation.  

We know we face real challenges in overcoming these deep-seated issues, but 

we must all be ambitious in our thinking and in our desire for change. Through 

the Health and Wellbeing Board we aim to enhance joint working and fresh 

approaches. We know it’s going to be increasingly dif�cult, but the bene�ts are 

substantial.

We continue to make signi�cant investment in improving health and wellbeing 

locally, and as a result we have a lot to be proud of. Teenage pregnancy has 

reduced; there has been a steady decline in deaths of babies under one 

year old; women’s life expectancy is on a par with England; and educational 

attainment has continued to rise throughout the borough. This strategy sets out 

how we want to build on these successes over the next three years, working 

in partnership across Haringey and moving further towards the goal of good 

health and wellbeing, something that every resident can aspire to and enjoy. 

Good health and wellbeing is in everyone’s interest, is everyone’s responsibility, 

and requires everyone to play their part.

This consultation is an opportunity for you to tell us how you think we can 

reduce health inequalities in Haringey and where we should target our 

resources. I encourage you all to have your say.

Councillor Dilek Dogus

Cabinet Member for Health 

and Adult Services

Dr Helen Pelendrides

Chair, Haringey Clinical Commissioning Group

Page 38



Haringey’s Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy
Haringey’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy sets out our commitment and approach to tackling health 

inequalities and promoting health and wellbeing locally. Our priorities have been set in response to the 

issues we face, which are most starkly demonstrated by the gap in life expectancy between different parts 

of the borough.

Through the implementation of this strategy, we will seek to achieve real and measurable improvements 

in the health and wellbeing of residents by investing in prevention and early intervention activities, 

and providing a coordinated approach to ensure that all of our activities contribute towards health 

improvements and reduce inequalities. 

The vision of the strategy is: 

A Healthier Haringey

We will reduce health inequalities through working 

with communities and residents to improve 

opportunities for adults and children to enjoy a 

healthy, safe and fulfilling life.

Our three outcomes are:

1. Every child has the best start in life

2. A reduced gap in life expectancy

3. Improved mental health and wellbeing

Page 39



W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 n

d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 c
h
ild

re
n
 t

o
 e

n
jo

y
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
y,

 

s
a
fe

 a
n
d

 f
u
l�

lli
n
g

 l
if
e
.

A
 H

e
a
lth

ie
r 

H
a
rin

g
e
y

Page 40



What we know about Haringey

Approximately �ve in every 1,000 babies die 

before their �rst birthday, higher than both the 

London and England average.

Although the number of teenage pregnancies 

is falling locally, levels remain higher amongst 

mixed White and Black Caribbean communities.

Black African women and those 

aged under 20 tend to book late 

for maternity care.

Breastfeeding rates are 

considerably lower in the 

east of the borough.

Vaccination rates have 

increased, but remain below 

the level required to protect 

the local population.

One in four children is either 

overweight or obese when 

they start school. By year six 

this increases to nearly 40%, 

with obesity levels at 10.9% 

for White British children 

and 28.2% for Black African 

children.

There are differences in attainment at Early 

Years Foundation Stage (birth to �ve years 

old) between different ethnic groups. 86% of 

White British children are scoring 6 or more on 

personal, social and emotional development, 

compared to 61% African, 55% of Caribbean, 

53% Turkish and 39% Kurdish children.

Outcome one

Every child has the best start in life

Outcome two

A reduced gap in life expectancy

Outcome three

Improved mental health and wellbeing

Research shows

By the age of ten a child from a poorer 

background will have lost any advantage of 

intelligence indicated at 22 months; whereas a 

child from an af�uent family will have improved 

his or her cognitive scores purely because of 

his/her advantaged background.

Smoking or exposure to smoke in pregnancy 

increases the risk of premature birth and low 

birth weight. Almost half of all teenage mothers 

smoke during pregnancy.

Higher teenage pregnancy rates are linked to 

poverty and low educational attainment.

Breastfeeding improves the health of babies. 

Vaccination and immunisation programmes are 

essential to the wellbeing of our communities.

Overweight or obese children and young 

people often have easy availability to low cost, 

high fat and sugary food and drink.

What we plan to do

Provide targeted support for the welfare, learning 

and all round development of children ensuring 

they make good progress from conception to 3 

years so that they are ready for school at 5 years.

Encourage pregnant women to give up smoking.

Increase early access to ante-natal and post-

natal support especially for Black African 

women.

Promote breastfeeding.

Raise awareness and take up of vaccinations

Promote a healthy and balanced diet for families.

Reduce the barriers to and increase 

opportunities for taking up physical activity 

amongst children.

Provide targeted, relevant and accessible sex 

and relationship education to children and 

young people.

Percentage of receptoon and year 6 children who are obese 

2009/10

Page 41



What we know about Haringey

Life expectancy is rising generally, in line with 

national trends, but there remains a nine year 

difference between men living in the east (72.5 

years in Tottenham Green and those living in the 

west (81.5 years in Fortis Green) of the borough.

The gap in life expectancy is mainly due 

to heart disease, stroke, 

cancer and lung disease. 

Around 28.6% of men and 

24.2% of women smoke 

compared with 25.3% and 

18.8% respectively for 

London.

Alcohol related hospital 

admissions rates have 

almost doubled in the 

period 2004/05 -2008/9 for 

men and women.

Over 50% of men and 

about 40% of women in 

Haringey were overweight 

or obese.

Heart and respiratory disease are the top 

two causes of death for people with learning 

disabilities

Around 5,743 adults aged 18+ are using social 

care services; by far the largest group is women 

aged 65+ re�ecting that women live longer than 

men.

Outcome two

A reduced gap in life expectancy

Outcome one 

Every child has the best start in life

Outcome three

Improved mental health and wellbeing

Research shows

Smoking, poor diet, lack of exercise, alcohol 

misuse and obesity are risk factors for heart 

disease, stroke and cancers. These risk factors 

are more common in deprived areas. 

Obesity has more than doubled in the UK 

in the last 25 years and nearly a quarter of 

adults are obese. People who are obese die on 

average 9 years earlier than those who are not. 

Children who grow up in homes where there is 

alcohol, nicotine or drug abuse may be more 

likely to develop addictions.

Heart disease is more common in lower socio 

economic groups, in certain black and minority 

ethnic groups and in people with learning disabilities.

Giving people more choice and control over 

the support they need helps them to live 

longer, healthier lives.

The more hours of care an unpaid carer provides, 

the more likely it is that they will be in poor 

health. This is particularly so for those providing 

more than 50 hours a week (21% of carers).  

What we plan to do

Protect families and communities from 

tobacco.

Motivate and assist every smoker to quit.

Extend identi�cation and brief interventions 

programmes to minimise the harm caused by 

alcohol misuse.

Reduce the barriers to and increase 

opportunities for taking up physical activity 

amongst adults.

Raise awareness of heart disease, stroke and 

cancer, and increase take up of screening 

programmes, with a particular focus on men 

aged 40+ in the east of the borough.

Increase the number of health checks and 

health action plans for people with learning 

disabilities.

Promote independent living for vulnerable 

adults and support those who care for them.

Promote healthy living in the planning and 

regeneration of Tottenham.

Male Life Expectancy Source: 

LHO 2005 - 2009

Page 42



Outcome three

Improved mental heath and 

wellbeing

Outcome one 

Every child has the best start in life

Outcome two

A reduced gap in life expectancy

What we know about Haringey

Haringey is one of the most diverse boroughs 

in London and black and minority ethnic groups 

are more likely to experience mental health 

issues.

Many people with severe and enduring 

mental health problems live in the 

east of the borough (Bounds 

Green, Woodside, St Ann’s 

and Tottenham Green). Late 

diagnosis is common in the 

east of the borough.

Haringey has a young 

population with high rates of 

drug and alcohol misuse and 

unemployment which are 

linked to mental ill health.

There are an estimated 

2,452 children aged 5-16 

with mental health problems 

which is estimated to 

increase by 8% by 2013.

6.29% of residents over the age of 65 were 

estimated to suffer from dementia in 2008.

The recent Tottenham disturbances will have an 

impact on the wellbeing of communities in the 

east of the borough.

Research shows

1 in 6 people in England suffer from a common 

mental health problem like depression or 

anxiety.

1 in 200 people have a serious mental illness 

like psychosis (where people may experience 

hallucinations or delusions).

There is a strong link between physical and 

mental health. People with poor physical 

health often have poor mental health and vice 

versa.

Common mental health problems for people 

with learning disabilities include: anxiety 

disorders, depression and schizophrenia.

Poor mental health and wellbeing can impact 

on every aspect of life including physical 

health, education, employment and social 

functioning.

Early diagnosis leads to improved mental 

health and wellbeing. 

What we plan to do

Raise awareness of sensible drinking to 

minimise the harm caused by alcohol misuse. 

Increase the number of problematic drug users 

in effective treatment. 

Improve access to education, training, 

employment and housing particularly 

increasing opportunities for young people and 

those with mental health problems including 

people with learning disabilities.  

Increase access to information and resources 

about mental health services to support self-

help to promote wellbeing.   

Promote the inclusion of emotional wellbeing 

in community development initiatives, in 

particular the work to regenerate Tottenham. 

Prioritise prevention and early intervention 

by working with schools, young people and 

families to provide accessible non-stigmatising 

services in local community based settings.

MINI2000 (Mental Illness Needs Index)

Page 43



V
is

io
n

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

a
g

re
e

A
g

re
e

N
o

o
p

in
io

n
D

is
a
g

re
e

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

d
is

a
g

re
e

If
 y

o
u
 d

is
a
g

re
e
, 
p

le
a
s
e
 s

a
y
 w

h
y

A
 H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
: 
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t

o
 e

n
jo

y
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
y,

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d

 

fu
l�

lli
n
g

 l
if
e
.

W
e
 a

re
 k

e
e
n
 t
o
 h

e
a
r 
w

h
a
t 
yo

u
 t
h
in

k 
o
f 
o
u
r 
p
la

n
s
 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 lo
c
a
lly

. 

Te
ll 

u
s
 t

o
 w

h
a
t 

e
x
te

n
t 

y
o

u
; 
a
g
re
e

 w
it
h
 o

u
r 

v
is

io
n
; 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

a
s
p

ir
a
ti
o

n
s
; 
h
a
v
e
 o

th
e
r 

id
e
a
s
 o

f 
h
o

w
 w

e
 c

a
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
; 
a
n
d

 h
o

w
 

y
o

u
 o

r 
y
o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 t
u
rn

 o
u
r 

a
s
p

ir
a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
to

 r
e
a
lit

y.

 C
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n
n
a
ir

e
 o

n
li
n
e
 a

t 
w

w
w

.h
a
ri

n
g
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/h

w
b
s
tr

a
te

g
y

A
lt

e
r
n
a
ti

v
e
ly

, 
y
o
u
 c

a
n
 r

e
tu

r
n
 t

h
is

 v
e
rs

io
n
 b

y
 p

o
s
t:

P
o

lic
y,

 E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

7
th

 F
lo

o
r,
 R

iv
e
r 

P
a
rk

 H
o

u
s
e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y

F
re

e
p

o
s
t 

R
R

J
G

-Y
J
B

H
-U

C
R

Z

L
o

n
d

o
n
 N

2
2
 8

H
Q

P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
tu

r
n
 y

o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n
n
a
ir

e
 b

y
 2

0
th

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

.

Page 44



A
s
p

ir
a
ti
o

n
s

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

a
g

re
e

A
g

re
e

N
o

o
p

in
io

n
D

is
a
g

re
e

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

d
is

a
g

re
e

If
 y

o
u
 d

is
a
g

re
e
, 
p

le
a
s
e
 s

a
y
 w

h
y

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 1

1
. 
G

iv
e
 e

v
e
ry

 c
h
ild

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i
n
 l
if
e

1
.1

 P
ro

v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

w
e
lf
a
re

, 
le

a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d

 a
ll 

ro
u
n
d

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 

th
e
y
 m

a
k
e
 g

o
o

d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 f

ro
m

 

c
o

n
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 3

 y
e
a
rs

 s
o

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 

a
re

 r
e
a
d

y
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
a
t 

5
 y

e
a
rs

 

1
.2

E
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 p

re
g

n
a
n
t 

w
o

m
e
n
 t

o
 

g
iv

e
 u

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g

1
.3

In
c
re

a
s
e
 e

a
rl
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

n
te

-

n
a
ta

l 
a
n
d

 p
o

s
t-

n
a
ta

l 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

B
la

c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 

w
o

m
e
n

1
.4

P
ro

m
o

te
 b

re
a
s
tf

e
e
d

in
g

1
.5

R
a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 

v
a
c
c
in

a
ti
o

n
s

1
.6

P
ro

m
o

te
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d

 b
a
la

n
c
e
d

 

d
ie

t 
fo

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 

1
.7

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 a
n
d

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

ta
k
in

g
 u

p
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
m

o
n
g

s
t 

c
h
ild

re
n

1
.8

P
ro

v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
, 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

a
n
d

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

e
x
 a

n
d

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 

p
e
o

p
le

1
.9

Is
 t

h
e
re

 a
n
y
th

in
g

 e
ls

e
 y

o
u
 w

o
u
ld

 

lik
e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

to
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
?

A
d

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n
t 

h
e
re

Page 45



A
s
p

ir
a
ti
o

n
s

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

a
g

re
e

A
g

re
e

N
o

o
p

in
io

n
D

is
a
g

re
e

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

d
is

a
g

re
e

If
 y

o
u
 d

is
a
g

re
e
. 
p

le
a
s
e
 s

a
y
 w

h
y

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 2

2
. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 g

a
p

 i
n
 l
if
e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y

2
.1

P
ro

te
c
t 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fr
o

m
 t

o
b

a
c
c
o

 

2
.2

M
o

ti
v
a
te

 a
n
d

 a
s
s
is

t 
e
v
e
ry

 s
m

o
k
e
r 

to
 q

u
it

2
.3

E
x
te

n
d

 i
d

e
n
ti
�
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 b
ri
e
f 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 t

o
 

m
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e
 h

a
rm

 c
a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 

a
lc

o
h
o

l 
m

is
u
s
e

2
.4

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 a

n
d

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

ta
k
in

g
 u

p
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
a
d

u
lt
s
  

2
.5

R
a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
h
e
a
rt

 

d
is

e
a
s
e
, 
s
tr

o
k
e
 a

n
d

 c
a
n
c
e
r,
 a

n
d

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 m

e
n
 a

g
e
d

 4
0
+

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

e
a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h

2
.6

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 a

n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s

2
.7

P
ro

m
o

te
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 c
a
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

2
.8

P
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

To
tt

e
n
h
a
m

2
.9

Is
 t

h
e
re

 a
n
y
th

in
g

 e
ls

e
 y

o
u
 w

o
u
ld

 

lik
e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

to
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
?
 

A
d

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n
t 

h
e
re

Page 46



A
s
p

ir
a
ti
o

n
s

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

a
g

re
e

A
g

re
e

N
o

o
p

in
io

n
D

is
a
g

re
e

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

d
is

a
g

re
e

If
 y

o
u
 d

is
a
g

re
e
 p

le
a
s
e
 s

a
y
 w

h
y

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 3

3
. 
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

w
e
llb

e
in

g

3
.1

R
a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
ib

le
 

d
ri
n
k
in

g
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 h

a
rm

 

c
a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
m

is
u
s
e
 

3
.2

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

b
le

m
a
ti
c
 d

ru
g

 u
s
e
rs

 i
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

3
.3

Im
p

ro
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 

a
n
d

 t
h
o

s
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s

3
.4

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
lf
-h

e
lp

 t
o

 

p
ro

m
o

te
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
  
 

3
.5

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 

e
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l w

e
llb

e
in

g
 in

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 T

o
tt

e
n
h
a
m

 

3
.6

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o

n
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
o

c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 s
e
tt

in
g

s

3
.7

3
.7

 I
s
 t

h
e
re

 a
n
y
th

in
g

 e
ls

e
 y

o
u
 

w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
?

A
d

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n
t 

h
e
re

Page 47



4. How might you and/or your organisation contribute towards improving health and wellbeing 

in Haringey? 

You:

Organisation:

Equalities monitoring 

Asking personal questions can help us to improve the services we deliver to the community. If by 

monitoring we discover that certain groups of people aren’t using particular services, we can address this 

to ensure equal access is given to all our residents.  

5. Some questions about you or your organisation 

5.1 Please tell us who you are

I represent a statutory organisation. Which one? ______________________________________________

I represent a voluntary and community organisation. Which one? _______________________________

I am local resident. Post code area (e.g. N8) __________________________________________________

Page 48



5.2 About you

1. AGE

What is your age group? 

0-4 12-15 25-29 65-75

5-7 16-17 30-44 75-84

8-9 18-19 45-59 85-89

10-11 20-24 60-64 90 and over     

2. ETHNICITY 

What is your ethnic group? (Please tick one box from the appropriate section)

White

British Irish    

White other

Greek/Cypriot Irish Traveller

Turkish Turkish/Cypriot

Gypsy/Roma Kurdish 

Other    

Please write in: _____________________________________________________________________________

Mixed

White and Black Caribbean White and Black African

White and Asian        

Other    

Please write in: _____________________________________________________________________________

Asian or Asian British

Indian Pakistani    

Bangladeshi East Asian African

Other    

Please write in: _____________________________________________________________________________

Black or Black British

Caribbean African    

Other       

Please write in: _____________________________________________________________________________

Chinese or other ethnic group

Chinese

Other    

Please write in: _____________________________________________________________________________

Page 49



3. DISABILITY 

Under the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA), a person is considered to have a disability if she/he has a 

physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on her/his ability to 

carry out normal day-to-day activities. This includes people with HIV, cancer and multiple sclerosis (MS).

Do you have any of the following conditions which have lasted or expected to last for at least 

12 months?

Deafness or partial loss of hearing

Blindness or partial loss of sight

Learning disability

Developmental disorder

Mental health

Long term illness, disease or condition

Physical disability

No disability

Other disabilities

Please write in: _____________________________________________________________________________

4. SEX 

Please tick the box that best describes you: 

Male Female

5. GENDER REASSIGNMENT

a) Does your gender differ from your birth sex?   Yes    No

b) Are you undergoing a sex change?   Yes    No

6. RELIGION

Do you have a religion or belief that you would like to mention? 

If so, please tick the appropriate box.

No Religion Jewish

Christian Muslim

Buddhist Sikh    

Hindu Rastafarian

Other   

Please write in: _____________________________________________________________________________

Page 50



7. SEXUAL ORIENTATION

How would you describe your sexual orientation?

Heterosexual Bisexual Gay Lesbian

8. PREGNANCY AND MATERNITY

Are you pregnant? Yes    No

Do you have a baby under 12 months old? Yes    No

9. MARRIAGE AND CIVIL PARTNERSHIP

Are you:

a)  Married? Yes    No

b)  In a same sex civil partnership? Yes    No

c)  Co-habiting? Yes    No

d)  Single? Yes    No

10. REFUGEES AND ASYLUM SEEKERS

Are you a refugee or asylum-seeker? 

Refugee Yes    No

Asylum-seeker Yes    No

What country or region are you a refugee/asylum seeker from? ___________________________________

11. LANGUAGE 

Please tick the box which best describes your language.

Albanian Arabic English

French Lingala Somali

Turkish

Other

Please write in:_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Thank you very much for completing this questionnaire; your views will 

help us shape the future of the health and well being of Haringey.

What we will do next 

Your views will be used to produce the �nal version of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The completed 

strategy will be launched in March 2012. You will be able to download copies from www.haringey.gov.uk 

Page 51



Please tell us if you would like a copy of this document in another language that is not listed above or in any 

of the following formats, and send the form to the Freepost address below.

  In large print  On audio tape   In Braille

   In another language, please state:

Name: Tel:  

Address: 

  Email: 

Please return to: Freepost RLXS-XZGT-UGRJ, Haringey Council, 
Translation and Interpretation Services, 8th Floor, River Park House, 225 High Road, London N22 8HQ

Haringey Council offers this translating and interpreting service to Haringey residents. We can translate this document into one language per resident ONLY.

Health and Wellbeing Consulation

Published by Haringey Council’sThis is printed on recycled paper. When 
you have �nished with it, please recycle.

Page 52



 

 1 

Scrutiny Review – Men’s Health 
Panel Meeting 
October 2011 

 
 
Councillors present: Cllr Winskill (Chair), Cllr Waters, Cllr Hare 
 
 
Others attending:  Maria Abraham (Tottenham Foundation), Ricardo 
Johnson (LINk), Brenda Taverner, Dr Rebecca Viney, Dr Mehboobali 
Alimohamed, John Nunney (LPC).  
 
 

Agenda Item Subject/decision 

1. 
 

Apologies for absence 
 
Fiona Wright, Public Health 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 
Dr Rebecca Viney – Member of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
Executive and Clinical Commissioning Group. 
 

3. Urgent Business 
 
None 

4. Tottenham Hotspur Foundation – Health Check programme 
 
An update on the Premier League bud to fund a Health Check 
programme was given. 
 
Please see attached presentation. 
 
Key points from the discussion: 
 
Funding would be from Premier League and Public Health match 
funded. 
 
Target group would not necessarily go to Tottenham stadium as 
they would find it daunting and they also do not have the funds to 
pay for matches. 
 
To access the target group do not attend on match days – this is 
not the target group. 
 
A good point of access would be Tottenham Community Sports 
Centre on Thursday mornings when there is a market. 

§ Centre would be a good venue for health checks 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 53



 

 2 

Programme would aim to cover as many languages as possible 
when recruiting Health Ambassadors from the local community.  
The role of the Health Ambassadors would be to spread health 
messages and encourage men to uptake health checks in the 
programme. 
 
Other good places to raise awareness would be: 

§ Community parks 
§ Lordship Recreation Ground and café 
§ Downhills 
§ Caribbean cafes and takeaways 
§ Barber shops 

 
Cultural aspects e.g. Turkish Community are highly likely to be 
smokers. 
 
Target of the programme is 3000 health checks over the course 
of the project.   
 
Programme would target the men who are unlikely to attend GP 
surgeries and who are less likely to engage with health services. 
 
Noted that the programme will not be widely advertised due to 
budget constraints. 
 
Discussion around forums for advertising the programme which 
would not necessarily cost e.g. mosque newsletters. 
 
Health Trainers would be assisting on days when Health Checks 
are taking place.  Their role would include signposting people to 
other services as well as the services which their provide 
themselves. 
 
Noted that men do visit pharmacies for a variety of reasons 
including to self medicate, buying other items and for general 
information. 
 
Discussion around whether pharmacies would be able to refer 
men onto the Tottenham Hotspur Foundation programme if they 
do not provide health checks themselves or where a person is 
unable to pay for one being offered in  a pharmacy. 
 
John Nunney would be happy to be a link into pharmacies for this 
piece of work. 
 
Discussion around how information could be given to pharmacies 
– suggested that Health Ambassadors would be able to help in 
their communities. 

Page 54



 

 3 

 
Should funding be confirmed the programme would start in early 
March 2012. 
 
Health checks would be done by the British Heart Foundation.   
 
Maria would be looking at getting the health checks done at a 
variety of times and not always within 9-5 e.g. early morning or 
after work hours. 
 
Discussion around the use of schools as an outlet for information 
e.g. school newsletters.  Noted that children can be a very good 
route of getting messages and information to their families. 
 
Discussion about a ‘Bring your dad’ session where children are 
offered a chance to see the Spurs ground and their dads would 
then be given a health check. 
 
Noted that when health checks are offered in the right setting 
there is usually a queue of men wanting to get one down. 
Element of ‘Me too-ism’. 
 
Noted that men are more likely to maintain sport if they participate 
in a team sport. 
 
Noted from Dr Viney that all GPs should be assessing risk factors 
as part of their consultation with patients.  This should be 
recorded via QOF and includes: 

§ Smoking 
§ Weight management 
§ Risk factors 
§ Family history 

This would be done on an opportunistic basis. 
 
Noted that the Tottenham Hotspur Foundation would be targeting 
those who do not attend GP surgeries. 
 
Noted that Turkish cafes quite often have football on.  Discussion 
around encouraging and supporting men in the cafes to set up 
football teams and whether this would incentivise them in 
increasing physical activity. 
 
Discussion around whether the health check programme could 
link up with leisure services.  Would there be an opportunity to 
offer men who had a health checks a discounted rate to 
encourage them to attend the leisure centres? 
 
Discussion about whether Spurs would sponsor a wrist band for 

Page 55



 

 4 

the health check programme to show men who had been for one 
and encourage others to do so. 
 

5. Dr Rebecca Viney 
 
Discussion around how well informed GP Surgeries are in terms 
of the local population e.g. do all GPs and their practice staff 
know the context in which they are working e.g. the life 
expectancy gap? 
 
Noted that the Clinical Commissioning Group is considering have 
a ‘Haringey Health’ website which would not be about ill health 
but about health and prevention. 
 
Noted that some countries are better than the UK at social 
marketing of health messages.   
 
There are a number of diseased that people do not know the 
symptoms for e.g. bowel cancer. 
 
Noted that employers should encourage men to go for health 
checks. 
 
Noted that men, and in particular some ethnic groups, do not 
want to see or be seen by women.  There is a tension here as it is 
generally women who are in these positions. 
 
Discussion around whether GP surgeries could do men’s hours or 
session.  Noted that there would be Equalities Act legislation 
around this which would make it difficult e.g. could be seen as 
positive discrimination. 
 
Dr Viney would be happy to assist with a recommendation around 
men and health checks. 
 
Noted that it does not have to be a GP who does the health 
checks. 
 
Noted that libraries are a good point of contact for the target 
group. 
 
Discussion around the big opportunity to get pharmacies 
involved. 
Noted that pharmacies can refer to a GP when they do health 
checks – some have a question about whether the person is 
happy for their information/results to be sent to their GP after.   

§ If the person is not registered with a GP the Pharmacist 
will give them a list of local GPs. 

Page 56



 

 5 

§ Discussion around how you can actually get men to then 
go to their/a GP. 

 
Discussion around the fact that not everyone knows their way 
around the UK health system and not everyone knows that it is 
free. 

§ Need to think of ways to help people to navigate the health 
system. 

 
Discussion around who attends A&E rather than going to their GP 
or another health professional. 

§ What are the demographics of attendees? 
§ Do they have GPs? 
§ Age? Ethnicity? 

 
Could A&E be used as a place to disseminate information? 
 
Discussion around the use of role models – suggestions Spurs 
players e.g. Benoît Assou-Ekotto 
 
Noted that awareness raising in the community is key. 
 
 

6. Public Health 
 
Deferred 

7. NHS Haringey AGM feedback 
 
Noted 

8. 
 

Dates of future meetings 
 
Noted 

9. Minutes 
 
Approved 

10. New Items of urgent business 
 
None 

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Centre for Public Scrutiny Engagement Wheel
	6 Public Health
	health_and_wellbeing_consultation[1]

	8 Minutes
	Tottenham Hotspur HEALTH CHECK presentation


